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ITEM NO. 1: PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2011 FOR THE COUNTY
OF MAUI (CC 10-27)
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel) . . . Good evening, everyone. At this time, the Chair would
like to call the Budget and Finance Committee meeting for March 25, 2010 at the Helene
Hall in Hana to order. At this time, I would like to call on our Councilmember from Hana to
introduce the Members that are here tonight. Councilmember Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Chair Pontanilla. Aloha mai kakou, everybody.
AUDIENCE: Aloha!
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you for being here, this evening. This year, the
Members are looking out there and they are all very impressed at the turnout this evening.
We had a meeting last night in Pukalani and it got over at 10:30 at night. So, but still,
according to Victorino's count, Hana looks like we have a pretty good count compared to last
night--either even or a little bit more.
AUDIENCE: Wow! . . . (applause) . . .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: But mahalo, everybody, for being here; and yes, I'd like to
introduce the Committee that's here. First of all, it gives me pleasure to introduce the Chair
of the Budget and Finance Committee for the Council on Maui, Mr. Joseph Pontanilla.
MS. LONO: This is for you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And of course, Chairman Pontanilla is from the Kahului area of
our nine districts. Next, we'd like to introduce the lady of the group, Ms. Gladys Baisa from
Pukalani, Kula, and all of that Upcountry area.
AUDIENCE: . . . ('applause,)...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Next, we'd like to introduce the Council Chair of our County
Council, who's a Member of this Committee. He recently returned from a trip. We're glad
to have him home safely. He represents the island of Molokai, besides the rest of Maui
County, Chairman Mateo.
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AUDIENCE: . . . (applause) . . .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And the Vice-Chair of the County Council, a Member of this
Committee also, representing Makawao-Haiku-Paia is Mr. Mike Molina.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause)...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And I'm just going to stay in that area and introduce, at the far
end, representing the island of Lanai--Sol Kaho'ohalahala.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause) . . .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And on the right side, and happy to be here, I think he opened
some of the traffic coming up, coming into Hana. How about a nice hand, representing the
Wailuku area, Michael Victorino.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause)...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And excused from being here tonight, and unable to come, we
have, from the Westside, representing the Lahaina area, Jo Anne Johnson is not with us
tonight; and also representing the Southside (the Kihei-Wailea-Makena area) represented by
Wayne Nishiki. He was unable to attend tonight, too. But once again, before we start, I'd
like to say we can see out there that predominantly all our seniors are here. Seniors, if you
can, stand up please.
AUDIENCE: (NOTE: A group of senior citizens stood up.) . . . (applause) .. .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, everybody, especially the seniors, for being here
tonight; so we know we going hear from you tonight. Mahalo, Chair Pontanilla.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros, for that wonderful introduction. Before we
start the testimony, the Chair would like to make a few comments. You all know that there is
a Transient Accommodation Tax that all of the counties in the State of Hawaii shares; and our
share this year that's in the Budget is for $17.5 million. The thing is that we don't know if
we're going to get the $17.5 million. So there are two House Bills in the State Legislature at
this time, and it's in the RAM Committee, House Bill 2598 that will be heard on Monday,
March 29 th , at 9:30 a.m. on Oahu; and what it is is capping the TAT portions for the four
counties in the State of Hawaii. We understand that Senator Donna Mercado Kim is looking
at reducing the rate that the House had indicated that they wanted to give to the County. So
right now, it's 75 percent and she wants to reduce it even lower; meaning that in the end, if it,
should it pass, that the counties will be receiving less dollars. And I would like to urge all of
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you to send emails, phone calls, to our legislators on Maui. You do have Representative
Mele Carroll, Joe Bertram, Angus McKelvey, Joe Souki on the House side; and on the Senate
side, we do have Senator Ros Baker, Senator Kalani English, and Senator Shan Tsutsui. If
any one of you know any of the Legislators that represent the different islands in the State,
also please write to them and say that, you know, "the TAT is very important for the whole,
the four counties in the State of Hawaii". So I urge you to do that. Also, in the Conference
Committee, this is House Bill 1744. That is the bill that was created last year to take away
the TAT from all four counties; and through everyone's efforts—not only the Council
members lobbying to make sure that it's not taken away from the County's—we also had
people, like you folks, writing to the Legislature as well as, you know, the people of the outer
islands doing the same thing. So, there's two bills: House Bill 2598, which is a cap; and
House Bill 1744, which is taking away the monies that, you know, I want to say "it belongs
to Maui". So if you could do that, we appreciate it.
Okay. Before we start the public testimony, a few ground rules. First of all, if you can turn
off your cell phones or put it in the silent mode; and then when you come up to the mike, if
you can speak directly into the mike; provide us with your name and organization that you
represent; and you provide your testimony. Once you've completed your testimony, if you
could stay for a few seconds because some of the Members may have questions to ask you.
So your testimony for tonight would be three minutes.
So at this time, we shall begin public testimony. The first person to sign up for public
testimony—and by the way, before I call the first name--I forgot. What you have in your
hands (the handout that's out in the front) that is the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget as proposed by
the Mayor. So what we're doing here tonight is we've taken public testimony from the
communities, the various communities, to see and hear from you folks, your needs in your
community. So we are working on the Mayor's 2011 Budget; and of course, the Council has
the final say in correcting this Budget. So it is very important that we hear from you so that
we can craft a Budget that everyone can live with. I know money is tight; but you know, this
Council is a very good working Council and I'm sure, you know, we're going to come out
with a Budget that, hopefully, everyone is satisfied with.
So at this time, I'd like to call on the first testifier—Anela Angell--Anela? She's a
paramedic. Go ahead and speak directly into the mike, please.

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY...
MS. ANGELL: Aloha. Good evening, Maui County Council. Thank you for coming and thank
you, people of Hana, also for being here. My name is Anela Angell. I'm a paramedic. I
work for American Medical Response. I've been a paramedic for a little over 15 years, full
time in Hana for the past 8 years. I am here not only as a paramedic for AMR, but I was born
-5
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and raised here--out in Kipahulu. I am here in support and to ask that the funding be
appropriated for the Maui MedEvac helicoptor. I believe it's a critical need for, not only
Hana, but all of Maui County. Because I've been working here full time for the last eight
years, we've used it a few times; and the times that we have used it, it was much needed.
Unfortunately, there was a lot of times that we could have used it and they weren't able to
come in. We had to do the drive . . . drive the patient by road, which took a lot of time.
Right now, we have the ability to call upon two fixed-wing aircrafts to come into Hana Town
directly. But what I think the Maui MedEvac can do that they cannot do is land out in Kaupo
or Kipahulu or Keanae (the outlying areas); and because they are paramedics that work on
the road and we're familiar with them, we have direct communication with the paramedics
that jump on the helicopter. We give them a heads up; and sometimes, they can actually beat
us to the scene if it's thirty-plus minutes out in the outlying areas. And in the event of natural
disasters—and we've had a couple scares so far—if the roads were to go out, it's very
comforting to know that if we cannot respond to the emergency in the outlying areas that
they can definitely get there and help whoever needs the help. So I just ask that you folks do
what you can and convince the Mayor, please. It's a much-needed service, and thank you for
your testimony time and your energies.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Anela, mahalo for coming forth this evening to testify. What
we have been hearing from our other districts when we have had meetings there and the
paramedics have showed up to talk and testify for the MedEvac, I wanted to know, in the
Hana area if—as you described—there's an accident in Kaupo and the helicopter might have
to be called in, who makes the decision in Hana to call the helicopter in? Is it the Police? Is
it the paramedics? Is it the Fire Department? Or is it whoever gets there first and makes the
primary assessment of the patient's injuries?
MS. ANGELL: Usually it's whoever gets there first. If Fire, Police, or even the National Park, they

get there, they can call dispatch; and through communication, we can decide as a whole. We
have communication with the emergency-room physician to see if we should even just launch
the helicopter. Being that it's, it would take us at least half an hour to get just to Kipahulu,
we've all, actually launched the helicopter and they've actually beat us to scene a couple
times.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you. I just wanted to have some clarification on
that for the Hana area; and that was pretty much the same response in the other districts. So
thank you, Anela, for your testimony this evening.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions? If not, Anela, just to clarify that the
Council has the final say as far as creating the Budget for the County of Maui. So the Mayor
had done her proposal and we are here to hear you folks in regards to what concerns you and
issues that you have. Thank you.
MS. ANGELL: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is Leinaala Kawaiaea followed by Michelle Notestone.
MS. KAWAIAEA: Aloha, Maui County Council. My name is Leinaala Kawaiaea and I too work in
Hana like . . . alongside with Anela; and not only as an EMT but also as a full-time resident
here--born and raised. So Anela and I have been working for the past two days together and
we've been pretty much discussing the needed use of the MedEvac here. So Anela pretty
much said it all and I don't want to take up more time, but please I want to ask you guys to
please support this MedEvac bill without taking up further time with testimonies. It's much
needed here, so thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you, again. Michelle Notestone followed by Jonathan Tolentino.
MS. NOTESTONE: Aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Aloha.
MS. NOTESTONE: My name is Michelle Notestone and I'm also . . .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Can you lift up your microphone so we can hear?
MS. NOTESTONE: Oh! I'm also a paramedic here in Hana and I've been out here for over ten
years as a paramedic. I also live here, along with my husband, who's a firefighter out here.
(NOTE: Mr. Notestone stood next to her.) This is Gale Notestone. I want to ask that you
keep the funding for this MedEvac. It's critical, critical for this rural area. I mean I've
worked all over this island and Hana, you know, is a lot different than anywhere else. We
have one ambulance here. We have absolutely no backup other than the Fire Department. A
lot of times, they're with us on a call. Sometimes, we can be in Keanae and maybe the Fire
Department's in town covering town, and there's a call out at Oheo--this is a National Park
we have there with many tourists. If a tourist gets critically injured there, what if we're in
Keanae and we have to transport somebody out to Kaumahina, and there's a critical case over
there. We could have the National Park rangers call the MedEvac. The paramedics can show
up in the MedEvac helicopter and take the tourist out. I think they probably have
expectations--because the rest of our nation here has MedEvac choppers--that there would be
one here, you know, the tourists. We've got this big tourist industry here. They support us
7
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and what if something like that happened or as a family member, you know. I ask you,
please, please, for our families; our loved ones; the Hana community; the tourists that come
out here. We're in such a rural area. I mean I call the chopper for things all the time for
critical patients, and it's needed. It's needed. I couldn't imagine not having it here. I
wouldn't feel as safe living here, for my family, you know. And don't we lose funding?
Doesn't the County lose like $600,000 in funding if we don't match that--600 or
650 thousand dollars?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No.
MS. NOTESTONE: We're going to lose $600,000. Is that true?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No.
MS. NOTESTONE: No?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Are you done?
MS. NOTESTONE: I'm done.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you for your testimony. I just wanted to ask you, since
you brought up the National Park.
MS. NOTESTONE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Do you know at what level of first aid or medical care the
rangers have? What kind of assessment level they have?
MS. NOTESTONE: Sure. It varies. It depends on who is working out there at the time. There are
some rangers that are EMT basic-level trained and some that are trained paramedic; but they
have no drugs out there. They're not allowed to carry drugs. At the moment, I don't know of
any of the park rangers that are at EMT level at all out there, so there is no one out there at
the moment--that I know of--that's EMT certified; so there's nothing.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, thank you for that information. And I think we've been
using as an example injuries by accident but we have, I'm sure you have a lot of calls-MS. NOTESTONE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --for heart conditions-8

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
Helene Hall
March 25, 2010

MS. NOTESTONE: I've called the chopper for . . .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --and everything else, yeah.
MS. NOTESTONE: Yes, I've called the helicopter for cardiac conditions because as we say "time is
muscle". The more time it takes for you to get to the hospital to get treated, the more your
muscle is going to die in your heart; and look how far it is if we had to drive you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you for your testimony here. We heard at the other
meetings that "time is tissue" too.
MS. NOTESTONE: . . . (chuckled) . . . Same theory.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you.
MS. NOTESTONE: All right. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa? (NOTE: Ms. Notestone walked away from
the microphone.) Excuse me!
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Hold on! Please, just a quick question.
MS. NOTESTONE: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You know, we have been informed that the use of the MedEvac is a
small (very small number) and yet, I'm listening to you and I'm hearing like it's a much
larger number. Can you give us an idea of what it actually is?
MS. NOTESTONE: I don't have a number for you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, you . . .
MS. NOTESTONE: I can tell you I've used the MedEvac two-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Is it once a week? Twice a week?
MS. NOTESTONE: --two times within the last, I'd say, four months.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Two times in the last four months?
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MS. NOTESTONE: Yeah. I had a patient (a 5-year-old out in Kipahulu) that I called the MedEvac
for; and I had this helicopter that crashed right over here near the school, where I had two
patients with broken backs and one with a skull fracture and a fractured leg. So we flew both
of them out, you know, back to back; and I use it, but it's not always used. It's like, how
much is a life worth. How much is your life worth? $600,000? $650,000? I tell you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That wouldn't buy one, believe me!
MS. NOTESTONE: Yeah. I mean it's . . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Not even one. Thank you very much.
MS. NOTESTONE: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. NOTESTONE: May I add something? Yeah, I'm Gale Notestone and I'm sorry to—I'm not on
your sheet. There's not one person in this room. Any one of you--look behind me--any one
of you that are laying on the ground and you need to get out to Maui Memorial, there's the
quickest way and that is the helicopter. You are all going to want it! I'll want it! You'll want
it! When that time counts, if we don't have it, you're going to wish you changed the process
here today. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Jonathan Tolentino followed by William Chang. Jonathan
Tolentino? William Chang? William Chang? Thank you.
MR. CHANG: Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee, thank you for coming out and giving
us an opportunity to speak with you this evening. I know you have a really tough job ahead
of you. There's no such thing as money growing on trees and when things are dwindling, it
makes it even harder to keep the funding of programs, especially popular ones, going. I'm
here this evening as a resident. I've lived here most of my life and I'm trying to retire.
. . . (chuckled) . . . I'm kind of like one step ahead of the baby boomers so if the crowd we
see here has any impact on you, coming over the mountain is like ten times that and growing
everyday. So I'm asking that you find a way to work your Budget to preserve as much as
you can the facilities and the programs that help our seniors--the transportation through
MEO, the senior programs. Believe it or not, I mean it's not just for the seniors, the impact is
all across the community; and I just (as one who's going to be stepping into that arena not too
far in the future, and I know all of you are thinking the same thing because we're all
approaching that. If we start whittling away at that, it's not going to be in a position to
support the new crowd that's coming in, so we need the support there. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you. Winona Matsumura? Winona Matsumura followed by Jonathan Tolentino, if he's here.
MS. MATSUMURA: Good evening, Members of the County Council. This is the first time that
I've ever spoken to a group.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: We gotta lower the mike, please.
MS. MATSUMURA: (NOTE: Someone lowered the microphone stand.) Thank you. I have spoken
to many students; but not to adults, so this is a first for me. I think I've met most of you
before. I'm 78 years old; born and raised in Hana; and completed high school before leaving
Hana in 1950. I returned many times and when I finally came back from the mainland, I
lived on the other side; and it's not the other side of the world—like my minister said "in the
other world, we know what the other side is". I cannot . . . I'm not here to talk about myself
but to reinforce the need for continued funding for our various nonprofit programs for our
kupuna, our young people, and our community as a whole. Hale Hulu Mamo has been a
blessing for all our kupuna. (NOTE: Sound system made a loud feedback noise.) The staff
is caring and words cannot express the joy I feel when I see that caring, their caring ways. I
pray that the program can continue. It must continue for the welfare of our elderly. I have
been fortunate enough to have benefitted from the Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike Program managed by
Rick Rutiz. (NOTE: Sound system made a loud feedback noise.) Rick constructed a small
deck and a ramp for me as I was waiting to have a replacement knee surgery. The
high-school students that Rick worked with benefited from his hands-on method that I
observed as they worked on my home. I saw students helping each other in mathematical
problem solving with Rick. Rick and the students have built a number of rooms for our
kupuna in Hana. It is good to see their happy faces upon completion. What better way for
students to learn than to see their accomplishments standing in Hana years later. We are so
fortunate to have these programs in Hana, especially since we live such a long way from the
shopping centers. I hope you will reconsider cutting the funds or maybe the Mayor will
reconsider for Hana. MEO, the youth center, Hale Hulu Mamo, Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike, and
others all need your consideration in Hana. Many of us depend on these services and I can
rest, and can rest well because of them. Please consider the great distance from Central Maui
and the extra costs to our Hana families as the need to get so many of these services. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you. Next testifier is Mona Oliveira.
MS. OLIVEIRA: Aloha, Council members. My name is Mona Oliveira. I'm a Substance Abuse
Counselor for Ohana Makamae. I am here to represent Ohana Makamae tonight and to ask
for continued funding for our program. We do drug and alcohol treatment, family
counseling, anger management classes, and we have a Keiki Makamae program, which helps
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moms with babies. We need this program here in Hana because we, programs like this, our
programs, you know, if we didn't have it, a lot of our residents would have to go all the way
out to Wailuku to do a lot of the treatment and whatever. But I ask for continued support
from the Council members and I also ask for support for Hale Hulu Mamo, Hana Youth
Center, the Hana Dialysis Home, and MEO. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you. Milton Oliveira followed by Uilani Phillips-Tehiva.
MR. OLIVEIRA: How's it, Members of Council. My name is Milton Judd Oliveira and I work for
Ohana Makamae also--as my wife Mona--and I work at the Sober Living House in Nahiku. I
am here to also support Ohana Makamae and ask for your continued support of Ohana
Makamae, and also Hale Hulu Mamo, the Dialysis center, and the MEO, seniors. We do
have a substance abuse problem in Hana and I can attest for that. I was a client of Ohana
Makamae before becoming an employee and as of . . . (end of tape, start 1B at 7:00 p.m.). . .
the substance abuse problem has been steadily declining. This is all due to Ohana
Makamae's help with the community and getting people help in Hana (right here in Hana)
without having to go to the other side of the island for treatment and whatnot. I just ask for
your continued support for that. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you. Uilani Phillips-Tehiva followed by Gregory Rummans.
MS. PHILLIPS-TEHIVA: Aloha, Council members. My name is Uilani Phillips-Tehiva. I'm born
and raised here in Hana, and I am the Office Manager for Ohana Makamae as well as Mona
and Milton. I'm here to ask you for your continued support. I cannot help but tell you how
much Ohana Makamae has brought so much joy to the families that has either gone through a
substance abuse problem in their families. We have a lot of services in Ohana Makamae. We
have domestic violence program, anger management program, Keiki Makamae program for
the moms; and like everyone said (Mona and Milton) that we try to make it convenient for
our community to provide them with services so that they don't have to travel to Kahului or
Central Maui. Also, I stand here to ask for your support for Hale Hulu Mamo, Hana Youth
Center, Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike, our Dialysis Home here in Hana—something that we've been
waiting for a long time—and all the other nonprofit agencies that we have here. I thank you
very much for being here tonight.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you. Gregory Rummans?
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GREGORY RUMMANS: Hi, Aloha, Council members. My name is Greg Rummans. I'm a client
of Ohana Makamae. Approximately two years ago, my wife had a stroke; and as a result, I
started drinking very, very heavily. I found myself in need of treatment. Thank God, I found
Ohana Makamae. They've given me the support that I need to deal with my addiction and
better my life. I'm eternally grateful and I fully support Ohana Makamae. Thank you for
your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
Jonathan Tolentino?
MR. TOLENTINO: Aloha. Hi, my name is Jonathan Tolentino, and why I'm here tonight is mostly
for . . . to keep our, the helicopter (AMR) you know, keep it going because I work here on the
ambulance too and I work at the clinic and I've seen . . . we use the helicopter a lot, a lot that,
if, if—because of the helicopter, that's how we could people out. Sometimes the fixed-wing
cannot come in, but the helicopter can come in. And sometimes, we have an ambulance
going out and nobody can respond to the area that another call is coming from, and so the
helicopter can go there and respond to that call sometimes. It all depends where it is. So in
my, in our situation here in Hana--because we really see the problem and how precious the
helicopter is to us and the community--it will save a lot of our community members. I have
seen a lot of tourists too that used the helicopter, and tourists was brought to the clinic to be
flown out by the helicopter too, so that's how important this it. Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Wait, Jonathan.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: (NOTE: Mr. Tolentino walked away from the microphone.) Hang on!
Member Medeiros has a question for you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Just a quick question, Jonathan, but thank you for your
testimony. If the clinic calls in the helicopter, are they able to land at the clinic? Or they
have to land at the airport and you folks transport?
MR. TOLENTINO: Yes, they need to fly to the airport because it's a safe area, and then we
transport to the helicopter.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you very much for your testimony.
MR. TOLENTINO: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Seeing none, the next two
testifiers—the first one is Helen Marie Pu'ili Le'a Oka Ua Cockett. Long name—whew! I
know I getting good with the Hawaiian pronunciations. . . . (chuckled) . . . And the other one
is Nohea Leilani Stoner.
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MS. STONER: Hello. Welcome, Council members. My name is Nohea and I'm here to support the
Hana Youth Center. The Hana Youth Center goes on excursions that teach us about all the
places and cultures of Maui. We interview our kupunas and they tell us how their childhood
was like and what we can do to respect the aina. The Hana Youth Center's cooking demos
are very inspiring and the dishes that they make are really tasteful and healthy. To help the
community, the Hana Youth Center goes to the beaches and picks up trash and plastic items.
The Hana Youth Center is a place where you are always welcome and you can make a
difference for our futures and for our grandchildren's futures. Well thanks for coming tonight
and have a safe trip home.
MS. COCKETT: Hi. Thanks for coming. My name is Pu'ili Cockett and I'm here to support the
Hana Youth Center. I like going on the excursions because they teach us things that we never
knew. For example, different limus and different opihis. It's also a place to hang out. We
also clean our beaches so our animals in the ocean can be safe. I love the Hana Youth Center.
It's the place to go. It's loads of fun. Thank you all very much for coming.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Pu'ili. That's a simple name Pu'ili Cockett.
AUDIENCE: . . . (laughter) .. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you, ladies.
Next two testifiers—the first one is Noelani Clark and the other one is Estrella Annie
Corrigan.
MS. CORRIGAN: Hi. My name is Estrella Corrigan...
MS. CLARK: . . . and my name is Noelani.
MS. CORRIGAN: We're here to support Hana Youth Center . . .
MS. CLARK: . . . because it's the bomb!
MS. CORRIGAN: Some of the things I like about Hana Youth Center is that every Friday, someone
comes to open up and offers me breakfast. Then later, we do--one of my favorite things to
do--cooking demos. After cooking something yummy or help cooking, we go on a fieldtrip,
which is always educational; and not to mention, we usually go swimming. HYC is also fun
on weekdays . . .
MS. CLARK: . . . especially because after school, I can go up there and cruise with my friends no
matter what we're doing. I love that it is fun and it's rarely ever boring. The workers are
always funny and they have a great time with us.
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MS. CORRIGAN: HYC also does community service. We pick up trash on beaches and on the
roads.
MS. CLARK: That is important because I want to graduate and go to college. It is also important
because I want to keep the aina clean for our future.
MS. CORRIGAN: Every day, youth members come because . . .
MS. CLARK: . . . because, of course, it's awesome all the time. I grew up here . . .
MS. CORRIGAN: . . . and I go to school there . . .
MS. CLARK: . . . and I want to keep going because it's blast!
MS. CLARK/MS. CORRIGAN: So mahalo very much for the continued support of HYC!
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifiers? Seeing none, thank
you. Actually, you guys can go act, you know.
AUDIENCE: . . . (laughter) . . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Next testifier is K.H. [sic] Gillette followed by Susan Cuffe.
MS. GILLETTE: Good evening. I'm Kit Gillette and thank you for coming. I'm glad that you
mentioned the actors because some of the girls you just heard from were students with us at
Hana Arts. Hana Arts, as you may know, is a nonprofit that depends completely on your
support and the support of the community. It's the only place where our youth is able to
obtain the enrichment activities of the arts. We've had an outstanding theatre program, as
you may have known, and we have sort of been on-hold for the last couple of years because
we haven't been able to afford to continue that; but we have been able to provide some
enrichment activities for the students after school or on the Friday, on furlough Fridays. I'd
also like to thank you for being here, and urge you to continue your support for these
programs. Ohana Makamae is Hana's Family Resource Center, and you've heard about that.
As a senior, I'm 74 years old, but I have to work there because (as a young person) I did a lot
of volunteer work and so I don't have enough money to not work; so it really helps me to be
able to have a place where I can offer counseling to our families here. And of course, the
services that we can provide, on this side of the island, are so important to help people really
to support them in their recovery and in finding some of the support that they need rather
than having to go to the other side of the island, which is a big trip as you may know.
Speaking of that, the MEG Bus is an extremely important service. If you can imagine people
my age . . . (chuckled) . . . having to drive over there a number of times. Until we got the
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Dialysis Center--which again is another one of those that we would really support--people
had to drive over there several times a week; and I tell you, when I have to drive over, the
next day is not the day I'd like to be working. I am pretty tired by the time I get back.
Hale Hulu Mamo has offered me (as a senior) a lot of help and support. I take part in the
lomi lomi program that's offered and the aquatic (the aqua-size program) that we do. We do
a lot of, and we did, they've offered Thai chi classes. The volunteers offer there; and so I can
volunteer there but I can also receive there, so that's the wonderful thing about Hana. We
wear many, many, many hats. So thank you for coming today and we hope that you can
continue to support our projects.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I have one.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yes. Thank you for your testimony this evening. Are you with
the Hana Arts? (NOTE: Sound system made a loud feedback noise.) Did you say?
MS. GILLETTE: I'm a volunteer with Hana Arts.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, okay. Because your testimony said that Hana Arts depends
solely on County funding?
MS. GILLETTE: No, not just on County funding-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. GILLETTE: --but a lot of foundation funding.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. GILLETTE: And . . .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So you use the County-funding to leverage other funding
sources?
MS. GILLETTE: Yes, we do.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
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MS. GILLETTE: And as you know, a lot of that funding from foundations has gone, been cut way
back because of their revenue restrictions.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
MS. GILLETTE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So the Council urges nonprofits to use County-funding to
leverage other funding from Federal, State, or private foundations.
MS. GILLETTE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you.
MS. GILLETTE: And the other thing would be that we do cooperate with other organizations so
Ohana Makamae helps Hana Arts; and Hana Arts helps Ohana Makamae and
Hale Hulu Mamo; so it's all, you know. We're kind of all on the same team.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier? You're so
right that, you know, I too noticed that--that all of the nonprofits over here work together.
Thank you. Susan Cuffe?
MS. CUFFE: Hi, there. My name is Susan Cuffe and I'm a counselor at Ohana Makamae. As you
folks probably know, we're a substance abuse treatment agency, but I wanted to remind the
Council that substance abuse is a family disease. (NOTE• Sound system made a loud
feedback noise.) Hana has many agencies that support families. By us working together and
making the best use of the funds that you've given us, we've been able to set up a network to
support families in Hana and support recovery and strengthen Hana's families.
(NOTE: Sound system made a loud feedback noise.) One of those is Hana Youth Center,
Hana Arts, Hale Hulu Mamo, MEO. And as a former nurse for the State of Hawaii in Hana,
I'd say there's probably nothing more beautiful than watching that helicopter land in Hana,
when it's somebody you love; so thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, next
testifier is Anne Jenny followed by Hos i Cosma.
MS. JENNY: Good evening, Council members. Thank you so much for being here. I'm lucky
enough to be sort of a new person here. I have the honor of being the Executive Director of
Ohana Makamae, and I really do consider it an honor. As you've heard from both our clients
and our staff, how critical it is to so many pieces of our community. But it's not as that
position that I'd like to talk to you tonight but—as a former Economist for the U.S.
Treasury—I worked with the Treasury during the last banking crisis. I spent ten years
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researching how funds were leveraged to help communities and help communities survive
the loss of critical financial resources; and the one thing that we found—every single area
that we looked at, from Appalachia to New Mexico to Alaska—was the more money that was
invested in the social services (direct services to the community) the better off those
communities were. There is hard numbers to back this up. For every dollar that you invest,
you're going to save $9 in the long run, whether it's for childcare services now to avoid
delinquency problems later; senior services that help avoid healthcare problems later;
whether it's giving some child the opportunity to participate in an arts or a building program
that takes a delinquent child and turns him into . . . uh . . . One of the people that was helped
by the youth center is now a practicing lawyer in Wailuku. She was telling me that she
would have been a delinquent, you know, probably doing drugs on the beach, if it had not
have been for that program. So what I'd like you to understand, more than anything else, and
part of why I'm so proud to be standing here tonight, is this community is unique. In all the
places I've worked all across the United States, I've never seen such an aggregate sharing of
all the resources. All of our nonprofits here share. We share Board members. We share
resources. We share programs. . . . (chuckled) . . . I mean it's really amazing and because of
that, every dollar that you spend here not only gets leverage (the way) for the long term, but
in the short term because of the fact that we all can support each other. So thank you very
much and thank you for being here. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
(NOTE: Ms. Jenny quickly walked away from the microphone.)
AUDIENCE: . . . (laughter) . . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, you know, everybody just wants to get away from that mike.
AUDIENCE: . . . (laughter) . . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier is Ho'i Cosma followed by Keoki Kalani.
HO'I COSMA: Hello. How's it? . . . (chuckled) . . . My name is Wai Ho'i Cosma and I'm here to
share with you why I like the Hana Youth Center. The Hana Youth Center, to me, is like my
second house pretty much because I go there a lot. I usually catch ride with Uncle Keoki, so
I can go over there just for cruise. Usually, every time I go up there, I learn something new.
Like when we get cooking demos, I learn how for cook something new. We go up there; lift
weights with my friends; cruise; have a good time; and it's really like one family to me.
Everybody works together. Everybody helps each other. Get rules that we got to follow and
it really makes us better for like school and when we grow up in our community. They help
us with our homework after school and yeah, that's all I get for say. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you, again. Keoki Kalani followed by Eileen Comeaux.
MR. KALANI: Aloha and Good evening, Council members. Aloha, Hana. My name is Keoki
Kalani and I'm the E.D. for Hana Youth Center. Yes, this is a challenging time period in our
economy and we all thank you for your efforts in going through the proposed Budget and
being here this evening. As it looks, we already know that those of us—who depend upon
County funding--will be required to utilize the best of our ability to provide the services we
offer with less funding from you. It's scary. I wish it wasn't that way, but it is, but this is
something that is understandably necessary. Securing funding is one of the many challenges
living in our small isolated community; and what affects one organization, usually affects
everyone in some way. Please wish us well. (NOTE: Sound system made a loud feedback
noise.) I wanted to share that there are many other
organizations that have enabled us to be
who we are today and the Hana Youth Center has collaborated, partnered, and received
services from MEO Transportation, Hana Canoe Club, Hale Hulu Mamo, Ohana Makamae,
Hana Health Center, Hawaii Tech Academy, Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike, Hana Arts, Hana Cultural
Center, Digital Bus, Alu Like YAP, Kahanu Gardens, Na Mamo 0 Mu'olea, Kekahulu
Ohana, and Hana Film Festival. We know that they're, we're all in this for the long haul; and
when times are better, we will look back and appreciate this lesson in efficiency. It is our
hope that we can be creative, resourceful, and still maintain our core purpose. Mahalo Nui
for you, for all you do as well as your continued support of our Hana community.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you,
again. Eileen Comeaux?
MS. COMEAUX: Pretty close!
AUDIENCE: . . . (chuckled) . . .
MS. COMEAUX: Pretty close. It's pronounced Como.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh.
MS. COMEAUX: It's pronounced Como. It's Cajun. It's my husband's name so I have to deal with
it. . . . (chuckled) . . .
So gosh, you know, everybody's come up here. I have to support
everybody. As far as the ambulance service goes, my husband personally has used that and
he would be in a lot worse shape if we didn't have the ambulance service. When they flew
him out that day, it was—it gives me chicken skin to think about it—but I was thrilled to
have that ambulance take care of my husband at that point in time. Along with that, you
know, oh gosh! Ohana Makamae has helped plenty with myself, who has gone through
a--not a drug treatment—but I did meet with the counselor; and I was glad to have that here
in Hana, so I didn't have to go to the other side. And also the insurance don't cover that; it
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doesn't cover that at all, so I was very glad to have that. And also Ohana Makamae, my
daughter has used their keiki program. It's an excellent program! She comes home with, you
know, food and the kids have a fun time here, and it's been very good for her to go to that
too; so Ohana Makamae has been great. Hana Arts, I don't know if you remember my
daughter that came here maybe five or six years ago with the hat on and all theatre about
Hana Arts; and now she is . . . (NOTE: Mr. Jensen adjusted the sound system volume.)
Oh!
Oh! I'm without sound; but that's okay, you can still hear me. My daughter has gone on to
Portland State University and she is getting an art degree and will graduate this year. And I
have to contribute that to the Arts program at Hana Arts. Also at the theatre that's there, she's
gone on to do swing dancing and she's also an instructor for swing dancing. That's part of
her theatrical, and part of Hana Arts, and I just don't know if she would have had all of that,
had she not had the background from a young age that she got from Hana Arts. So you
know, she's a great example of what can happen. She'll probably save the world with her art
as she's an international save-the-planet kind of thing, Hana Hou, yeah. The senior center
has been absolutely great for my husband to do massages. Since the accident, he has had a
really bad back and he's been needing those massages all the time. We're glad to have that
service here because, again, our insurance doesn't cover that stuff. So the things that we
need, our insurance doesn't cover; and so many programs in Hana, we do interact with each
other, so I hope that we can support all of Hana. Let me see—did I forget anything? Yeah.
In closing, please support our whole community. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Like I say, you know, you guys all work together and—
MS. COMEAUX: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --hard to dispute; but I think some of the Members going need massages as
soon as, after we're done. . . . (chuckled) . . .
AUDIENCE: . . . (laughter) . . .
MS. COMEAUX: It's an excellent program--excellent! Okay. We're good.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for the testifier?
MS. COMEAUX: Okay. Well, thank you for your support in the past, too.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. COMEAUX: And in the future.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Stacy Lynch followed by Teya Penniman.
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MS. LYNCH: Thank you all for coming to Hana. My name is . . .
(NOTE: She adjusted the
microphone height.)
My name is Stacy Lynch. I'm a founding Board member of Ohana
Makamae (Hana's Family Resource Center). Around eleven years ago, when Ohana
Makamae was founded, we were founded because the services we now offer were not
available in Hana anywhere. Thank you for your continuous support of Ohana Makamae.
We are making a difference in our community. Our Substance Abuse Counselors, trainees in
our school-based program, located at Hana School, are working hard with the students,
making this our sixth year in service. Our ongoing and expanding Keiki Makamae program
for pregnant mothers and children age ranging from newborn to three years old on a weekly
basis. The program provides transportation (if needed) to and from the program; a Maui
Food Bank box; participation in a scheduled presentation and time to socialize with other
mothers; continued services and substance abuse counseling; outpatient treatment for
court-mandated and voluntary clients; a psychiatrist specializing in substance abuse is also
available at OMI. Counseling services for individuals and families in the community,
whereas our hope is to assist families in creating long-term, healthy lifestyles and
communications. A few years ago, OMI renovated Uncle Eddie Oliveira's home and
dedicated Hana's first sober living house. Supporting our efforts to create a safe environment
for the community in partnership and collaboration with other agencies in Hana, Ohana
Makamae has grown to become the resource hub of the human-services sector in Hana. We
are indeed grateful for the many agencies and community-based programs that you have
helped us be a part of. We cherish this community and the wonderful families and
individuals that we serve through our programs offering ways to strengthen families. Please
continue to support Ohana Makamae. I'd like to ask you to also support our senior center,
youth center, the Dialysis Home, MEO's center, and the Art Barn. All are extremely very
important to our families in Hana. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you, again. Teya Penniman followed by Lehua Cosma.
MS. PENNIMAN: Aloha, Chair Pontanilla and Council members. It's a pleasure to be here this
evening. I'm Teya Penniman with the Maui Invasive Species Committee. It's always a
pleasure to see the Council here in Hana. This is where we're working so hard to protect the
watershed from Miconia. It's also where our, most of our born-and-raised crewmembers
come from. It's also where our crewmembers with the longest tenure with the project come
from. Some of whom have been working on the Miconia project for six, seven, even ten
years, which really speaks to the long-term nature of what it is we're trying to do. It's also a
second home for other of our Maui staff who don't live here but spend weeks at a time here
away from their homes and their families so they can work on Miconia. At this time, I'd also
want to acknowledge and honor some of the Hana staff, who are here tonight by asking them
to stand up and identify themselves.
AUDIENCE: (NOTE: Several men stood up.) . . . (applause)...
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MS. PENNIMAN: Thank you. These are the, these are the men, who are slogging through the
forest day after day, hanging from the helicopters and finding every—well not
"last"--unfortunately, but every Miconia plant that they can. And thank you for being here.
I'm not going to talk so much about the importance of continuing the work on Miconia
because I know you get it. It's a simple equation. If we don't keep it out of our native forest,
we lose the watershed and everything that goes with it. So what I do want to do is
acknowledge how extremely difficult the situation is for each of you to deal with this difficult
financial situation. I know that everyone is, many people either are or will be feeling the
pain, but I do want to note that the, The Maui News
noted that the conservation projects were
suffering some of the biggest hits in this Budget (25-percent). That's coming on last year's
hit from the State. We took a 40-percent hit, cut to our Budget last year from the State; and
we expect more this year, so it is going to be a difficult situation. We are . . . I am working
on trying to retain (to hold on to) the positions that I can--as I've mentioned previously to
you--where I've been not filling positions. That's two in Hana (two vacant positions) that I
am not filling; and you can imagine how difficult it is to find work in Hana, so that's it.
That's an impact. We're also, of course, looking to try to find other funds. We're hopeful
that we'll find some funding for coqui work and maybe either from State or Federal funds;
and also perhaps some Federal money for Miconia work, but that requires matching funds.
Just the other day, I got the call saying, "how much matching funds can you provide this
year?" And with that reduced funding from the State, it's got to come from the County to
keep that work going. If, as you go through the Budget—I know this isn't likely--you are
able to restore any funding, mahalo. If not, please don't add any more cuts to us; and when
things look brighter in future years--as I'm confident they will--please help restore our
funding. Thank you for all of the work that you do and for your continued support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Teya. We had several gentlemen testify last night at Pukalani,
and they did very well. One of the gentlemen I thought was going to give us a check; but
actually, it was his notes to speak on your . . . (end of tape, start 2A at 7:33 p.m.). . .
that's all.
They did really good last night. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, thank you. Thank you, Teya, for being here.
MS. PENNIMAN: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: When you say matching funds, then I—you're saying that
whatever we can give you, you'll be able to match up with Federal funding?
MS. PENNIMAN: Specifically for the Miconia project.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: For the Miconia project?
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MS. PENNIMAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So does that money have to be earmarked for Miconia? Or
would it be, if we give you $200,000, you can say "this is for Miconia" and get another
$200,000?
MS. PENNIMAN: The funding that we get from the County is, some of it is flexible. We do have
specific contracts with the County for specific work.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MS. PENNIMAN: Yeah, but yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So the other funding you could use as flexibility to get
matching funds?
MS. PENNIMAN: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And then the last thing I would say, you know, you
guys do a great job. I truly wanted and continued to want to support this because I
understand that on the other side of the world, ladies and gentlemen, we open the faucet with
water that comes from this side. Upcountry, even town side, there's places we get water; and
so we no take care of you guys, we not going have water. Thank you.
MS. PENNIMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions for Teya tonight? Seeing none, thank you.
Lehua Cosma followed by David Hunkins.
MS. COSMA: Aloha and Good evening, Maui County Council members. Thank you for coming all
the way out to Hana, and for this wonderful opportunity to speak before you. My name is
Lehua Cosma, Founder and President of Hui Laulima 0 Hana. I humbly come to let you
know that because of your support in helping to bring dialysis to Hana, I say thank you.
Today, we make one year!
AUDIENCE: All right! . . . (applause)...
MS. COSMA: And it's because all of you, for believing in us, that dialysis was a critical need for
Hana. I want to also say thank you. Because of all of you, my mom was able to dialyze ten
months in Hana before she passed on, and that is truly a blessing. She was able to utilize the
services and we are so grateful for that. I want you to know that she didn't die from her
dialysis. She died because she fell at home and it led to other complications, so it is really
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sad for all of us. But I have to keep going because I promised her, you know. She said
"when I'm gone, you still have to carry on because there's many more that will
need this
service"; and she's right. So tonight, I urge you to continue your support because we do have
others that will be needing it. In fact, we have another person that's moving to Hana before
the end of this year; and I am very grateful that we are set up. We have two wonderful
caregivers, who provide such excellent care to our kupuna; and I wanted to ask that you
focus on the accomplishments of how far we've come. And I know we need to be
sustainable instead of always depending on funding; and that's why we really need to work
harder. So in the meantime, there was an empty garage onsite, where we turned it into a little
thrift store. We don't charge anything but donations . . . and whatever monies we make helps
pay utilities in the Dialysis Home, so I just want you to know that we are trying our best to
keep it going besides always asking for funding. But there's wonderful volunteers (kupunas)
who have stepped up to the plate in making it work; making it happen for us; and I'd like to
acknowledge them if they are here. Aunty Vivian Kama'i, Myrna Costello, and Lynette, if
you want to stand, please!
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause)...
MS. COSMA: Thank you to these wonderful people. You know, that's how unique Hana is. When
you see a need, you just step up to the plate and help each other; and I support all the other
nonprofits too because we all depend on each other. Hale Hulu Mamo, they're so awesome.
After my mom passed away, we had the hardest time to get my dad away to go on a trip; but
Hale Hulu Mamo provided him a trip to Ulalena, and it was awesome! So we, that's the kind
of services in Hana that helps every family; and we cannot afford to cut any funding because
we live in isolation. We live so far away and we are so limited with what we have, and we do
make do with what we have. But in the meantime, we do need support from all of you too;
so with that, you know, I want to support Hale Hulu Mamo, Ohana Makamae, who's
providing my daughter a wonderful job. She works there. She has hard time with
babysitting but her baby gets to go, and that's why they're called "ohana". It's really helpful.
Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike, you saw the beautiful work at the Dialysis Home they did. They also
put up a guardrail at my house, more for my father, and there's so many. All of our
nonprofits, we really depend on the services. It's so essential, and I thank all of you. Again,
mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Lehua, and congratulations on one year.
MS. COSMA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for Lehua? Thank you, again, Lehua; and maybe
next time, when we come next year, we'll have a birthday cake sponsored by your wonderful
Council person, Mr. Medeiros. . . . (chuckled) . . . David Hunkins followed by Robert
Carroll.
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MR. HUNKINS: Good evening, Mr. Chairman and Council members. My name is David Hunkins.
My wife and I . . . my wife is better known in the community as "Sugar". We came to
Hawaii in 1952, so we've been a part of the community for many years. Sugar came to
Hawaii on the Lurlene--if some of you remember that ship--and she joined the Queens
Hospital as a nurse in the nursery. I came to Hawaii by rail. By that, I mean a troop ship
. . . (chuckled) . . . and I, literally, mean by the rail; and I joined the Army Finance office in
Schofield Barracks. We raised four daughters and we moved back to Maui into Pukalani
about 32 years ago. We started Kihei Rent-A-Car from scratch. Twenty years ago, we
started the company, and I retired six years ago and moved to Hana. I turned the
management of the company over to my daughters, who are doing a great job. On the second
day that I arrived in Hana, my phone rang and it was Hale Hulu Mamo inviting me and my
wife to join the aqua-size class, which they had permission to use the Hana Hotel pool. We
were happy to do that and have been a very active Member in that exercise program as well
as the many other facilities and programs that they offer. I'll name just a few, since I haven't
heard many of them mentioned. There'd be a hula class; a Thai chi class; a yoga class;
lomi lomi massage; acupuncture; massage equipment use; free haircuts; car washing; free
shoes; movies in the park; lectures on many important subjects by visiting speakers; hospice
supplies that can be used; and many, many more facilities and equipment. I truly believe that
Hale Hulu Mamo is one of the most important and valuable community organizations in
Hana. If we must cut back, there is no alternative for these services other than to drive, as
you know, the very long and arduous trip into the other side of the island. Certainly, there are
no other facilities with the tender loving care that you feel the moment you walk in the door
of Hale Hulu Mamo, which I do and my wife does nearly every day of the week. I sincerely
ask you to consider your continued support of that wonderful organization. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you,
again. Thank you. Next testifier is Bob Carroll followed by Geraldine Carroll.
MR. CARROLL: Aloha, Council members. Bob Carroll of Hana, I have several things. First of all,
I am the Chair of the Community Work Day for Maui County; and I distributed to all of you,
my testimony. I can read that quickly so I'm going to go over that first. After that, I have
about a half dozen organizations I'm going to speak on briefly. Since the economic
downturn, illegal dumping of household trash has risen 25 percent from 160,000 lbs. last year
to 202,000 lbs. this year. The Department of Environmental Management partners with
Community Work Day to assist communities in removing this trash and debris, including the
waste left behind as homeless campsites are often located on County-owned parcels. In this
way, Community Work Day provides assistance to the Department of Parks and Recreation
and the Department of Public Works. The Refuse Division cannot pick up illegally-dumped
trash and the abandoned vehicles program is not equipped to remove the trash that
accumulates around abandoned vehicles. In these cases, Community Work Day is called on
by the County. Community Work Day responds with flatbed trucks to quickly clear illegal
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dumpsites before they grow. The quick response grant from the Department of
Environmental Management also helps to conduct solid-waste recycling events in remote
communities for materials not accepted at the landfill. If the quick-response grant does not
continue, the hot-spots dumpsite clearing cannot continue; and Community Work Day will be
unable to assist communities like Hana, Kahukuloa, Honokowai Valley, Huelo, Kula,
Makena, Waiehu and Lanai as we have. From all of these communities, we have removed,
dumped appliances, scrap metal, tires, vehicle batteries, and even vehicles. Government
cannot carry this burden alone and it doesn't. The money provided to Community Work Day
by the County is the foundation for additional funding, supplies, and free labor from
community businesses and residents. The more money that is cut, the less we can do to
support our communities and the County of Maui itself. We are not asking for any more
money than was put into this year's budget. We humbly ask for no changes to the budgeted
amount for Community Work Day.
We have had two community pick-ups by the old Hasegawa Store. It was very successful, a
large amount of refrigerators, all kinds of appliances, all kinds of rubbish. We wanted to
make one more this month, but we do not have the funds. We were able to do the other two
because I allowed Community Work Day (for free) to use my cottage. And I'm not the only
one that lets Community Work Day use their facilities or equipment without charge. It's one
of the ways that we extend our use with the money we have. I would hope that the Council
will continue to support it because we are, actually, if you look at it, we work for Maui
County. We're almost a part of the County because we do what the County cannot do. You
cannot go on private property; we can.
The other things is Hale Hulu Mamo (our Adult Day Care Center). You've heard much
testimony about that already. I'm also on the Board of Maui Adult Day Care Center, which
Hale Hulu Mamo comes under. We need this desperately. Cutting anything from them is
really going to adversely affect not only the seniors themselves, but their families. It's really
difficult. It's hard for anybody to realize the true impact until it happens to your own family,
which has happened to mine and many others in this room.
Much testimony was given about MEO Transportation. You take away MEO Transportation
in any way--we have fought many years and the Council has supported the bus system that
we have—it would detrimentally affect almost every organization that you hear from today.
You heard what Keoki was telling you about all the different organizations that work
together, and most of them are tied together in some way with Maui Economic Opportunity
(the transportation) so I would hope that that would be one of the key things. We're very
happy that you have that bus service on the other side, and that's really good; but Hana bus
service is MEO.
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ani Mai Park, we have up here. I haven't heard anybody say anything about it yet. I
know you're all aware of it. We would really like to see that proceed. I believe there are
monies in this past Budget that were allocated for that. I would hope that the Council could
encourage the Administration to make use of those funds and proceed and bring that park up
to what's needed for our community.
The dialysis in Hana, you heard Lehua. That has been one of the things that we're very, very
proud of the Hana community and very proud of the Maui County Council for their support
of that, for lives saved and lives enriched by having this facility; and we would hope for the
continued support.
Miconia was mentioned and I would like to say that not only is it important to have the
Miconia controlled because it could just decimate our whole entire forest over here. If
anybody has ever had the chance to watch in Tahiti, the film over there, seen entire
mountainsides slide down because only Miconia. They can see how bad it can be. But we
have another benefit by having the Miconia people over here. Because they're trained, when
we had the dengue fever, to be able to handle, they go outside and be a fast response. If we
don't have that fast-response team ready, which is the Miconia team, and you have dengue
fever, it will come up like that! It's not something that slowly comes. It just appears. You
need to have the team ready; and we have that, so it's a double benefit. The Miconia people,
they're ready if we have that health emergency; and Dr. Pang has said this often--I think
before the Council too--we are ready, and we can handle it before it becomes a true health
hazard. There are many other things that I had written down but everybody over here seems
to be doing very well.
MR. JENSEN: (NOTE: Sound system made a loud feedback noise.) Three minutes.
MR. CARROLL: And I think he just said I have to sit down. . . . (chuckled) . . . Oh my! That's the
way it is; no respect any more. . . . (chuckled) . . . Thank you very much for coming and I
hope you can continue to be responsive, not only to the Hana community, and I'll speak for
Lanai too. Hana, Lanai, and Molokai--except for the last ten years--but if you go back ten
years, we were always the last kid on the block. We received old equipment from the
County; old trucks from the State and everybody else; and now it's, we're finally being
recognized and we appreciate it. Thank you, Chair.
MR. JENSEN: (NOTE: Sound system made a loud feedback noise.) Three minutes.
MR. CARROLL: It doesn't want you to talk either. . . . (chuckled) . . .
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: (NOTE: Speaking to Mr. Jensen..) I think the volume is little bit too loud.
Thank you, Bob. That was the longest three minutes we've had since I've been on the
Council, so we appreciate your speech. We used to work together so I can kid with him.
Anyway, the next testifier is Geraldine Carroll and once Geraldine has completed with her
testimony--you know, we've been sitting for almost an hour and a half now--we'll take a
short recess, maybe about ten minutes. Geraldine?
MS. CARROLL: Chair Pontanilla and Members with the Maui County Budget Committee, my
name is Geraldine Carroll and I'm here to testify on behalf of the Hana Lani Senior Club, as
you see, all the blues out here in the audience. (NOTE: Points out the group of senior
citizens wearing blue shirts in the audience.)
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause)...
MS. CARROLL: We, who live in Hana, have access to two grocery stores, one gas station, and one
medical center. There are many senior citizens who do not drive and depend on MEO for
transportation. I have had the opportunity to care for my 90-year-old mother, who had a
stroke, and transferring her from bed to wheelchair, took strength and knowhow; but getting
her into and out of the car was more difficult. It was MEO bus driver and the bus that made
it easier for mom to join the seniors at Hale Hulu Mamo Adult Day Care Center, and I really
appreciate that service. Some of us have the Kaiser medical plan; therefore, we need to use
our MEO Transportation to Wailuku. Having two buses in Hana makes it possible to
continue service for our seniors to attend the Hana Day Care Center, while the other bus is
used for doctor appointments and shopping trips. Chair and Members of the Council, we
thank you for coming all the way out here to Hana in this weather. Please remember us here
in Hana, that it is important to have the MEO bus service and Hale Hulu Mamo Adult Day
Care Center. And I also want to say how much the air ambulance is for us. My mother had
the opportunity, when they landed at the Hana Medical Center, she used it and she was
transported all the way to Queens Hospital. I got on the plane as early as I could. When I got
there, she was ready for surgery; and the doctor said "had it been another minute later, she
would have died because she had two aneurism". We know that on the Hana Highway, we
lost one life with aneurism--went to Maui Memorial Hospital; stayed; went into a coma; and
she passed away. So please, think of us in Hana because we're all ohana and we work
together. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Geraldine. Members, any questions for the testifier? Member
Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you, Chair; and thank you, Geri, for your testimony
tonight. I have a question for you.
MS. CARROLL: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Part of the proposed Budget by the Mayor, not only is reducing
significantly the MEO Transportation services--not just for Hana, but everywhere--but
they're also talking about requiring every County-funded bus trip, that when you get on, you
pay a dollar. Say you go from your house to the center; and then, from the center to your
house, you would have to pay another dollar. I'm trying to assess what this would mean for
the seniors and the children that use the buses, so we'd like to hear your mana'o about that
cost.
MS. CARROLL: Well I know for myself, when I use the bus to go to the other side, okay. We
have, if I went for medical, I get off at Kaiser, that's a dollar. Then, I wait for the bus; the
bus come; I have prescription; so if they don't have it at Kaiser, I would have to go to Longs
or the other drugstore. I find that Wal-mart is reasonable for that. That's another dollar.
And I mean, I'm retired; fixed income; good thing I have my husband. (NOTE: Sound
system made a loud feedback noise.) He has a little more than I do; but my medical helps
him, so we're even. . . . (chuckled) . . . But that's a lot of money coming from our pocket,
and I think of—I have one granddaughter going to school, but I'm having greatgrandchildren coming up. Now if they go with us, how many dollars is that?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Also, if you go shopping in town-MS. CARROLL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --then you go to Longs and then you go Ah Fooks, or you go every
place, remember that every time you get on and off, it's a dollar. So you know, we need to
hear from the passengers about this so that we know. That way, when we speak, we can say,
"this is what the people have told us", so we need to hear from you. We, I, personally—and I
can't speak for my colleagues—had never heard of this until when the Transportation
Department came to meet with us, and I think that was . . . I lose track of days. Was it
Monday or Tuesday?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Monday.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Monday, and that's the first time we had ever heard about this dollar;
and we were all kind of shocked, so I'm sure you are too. When you have time to think
about it and discuss it, we would like to hear from you because I think it's really important.
Thank you.
MS. CARROLL: Oh, it is.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
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MS. CARROLL: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
MS. CARROLL: Thank you for coming.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. After the recess, the first person to testify after the recess will
be Sheila Agnitsch. Hang on! (NOTE: Sound system made a loud feedback noise.)
Mr. Medeiros wants to make an announcement.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Before we take the recess, I want to acknowledge my staff from
Wailuku--Lei Kihm; Malia Kawaiaea Asuncion; Morris Haole; and my staff, Dawn Lono
from Hana, who coordinated the food; and the kindness of Member Victorino, who drove it
in because I was at a meeting in Honolulu and just flew back this afternoon and then drove
in. So I want to thank all the staff and all the . . . my ohana in Hana that made some of the
food. Thank you very much for preparing the food for our Members, who had to come a
long way for this meeting. Mahalo, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Medeiros. We're going to recess for about ten minutes.
We will return at 8:10. . . . (gavel) . . .
RECESS:

7:59 p.m.

RECONVENE: 8:10 p.m. . . .(end of tape, start 3A).. .

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel) . . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. The next testifier this evening is Sheila Agnitsch followed by Myrna Costello.
MS. AGNITSCH: You guys ready? . . . (laughter) . . . Okay. Mahalo ke Akua for this opportunity
and for this blessed day. Aloha, County Council members. My name is Sheila Agnitsch and
I am the Senior Center Director of Hale Hulu Mamo, which is one of the programs of Maui
Adult Day Care Centers. We opened our doors a little over ten years ago as Hana was in dire
need of caregiver respite and we wanted to provide a safe and nurturing haven for our
beloved kupuna of Hana to meet their social, creative, cultural, and physical needs. Ours has
been a pioneering effort and the goals we have reached would never have been realized
without the invaluable support of many people and organizations; most notably, the County
of Maui; Hana Parks and Rec.; and the Maui Adult Day Care Centers. Since then, we have
grown and continued to move forward in providing assistance, information, and services for
the kupuna of Hana. With daily attendance setting new records, with the continuing
expansion of new activities and programs, with independent kupuna housing an immediate
concern, an ad hoc committee together with Hale Mahaolu was formed. Planning continues
to move forward for an integrated senior services facility for Hana, which is currently
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scheduled to include a new senior center; an adult day care center; and a senior housing
component. We collaborate with many agencies to help provide and link our kupuna to the
services they stand in need of. We are proud of our "Hana Hospice" which is a partnership
with Hospice of Maui and volunteers from our community. Because these services are not
available to Hana, we store at our center, hospital beds; wheelchairs; commodes; shower
benches; adult pampers. You know I heard a joke earlier, talking about—Gladys--the one
dollar, one dollar, one dollar. Well I heard Uncle Masa said that they all going have to wear
depends now because now when you go bathroom going be one dollar, one dollar, one dollar.
. . . (chuckled) . . . So Uncle Masa, we do have adult pampers at Hale Hulu Mamo;
bed liners; crutches; walkers; shower lifts; and other health aides available to families in
need. We also have an oxygen concentrator designated for Hana at Hospice of Maui. We
offer ukulele lessons; arts and crafts classes; games; haircuts; car washes; holoholo days to
meet the social, cultural, and creative needs of our kupuna. We offer lomi lomi; aqua-size;
and acupuncture; to meet the physical and spiritual needs of our kupuna. The wellbeing of
our kupuna is vital to our community. Hale Hulu Mamo is the place that holds our precious
and esteemed kupuna; and I would like to acknowledge our kupuna. All of you—kupuna and
caregivers that ultilize Hale Hulu Mamo, can you please stand and show your support to our
County Council.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause)...
MS. AGNITSCH: We are so blessed to be able to work and love our kupuna each and every day.
Okay, thank you very much. I know if I hungry, they must be hungry too. Hale Hulu Mamo
is the house of the precious yellow feathers. It was a commitment between generations that
one would not forget and the other would not be forgotten.
MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MS. AGNITSCH: It is our commitment to our living ancestors that they will not be forgotten; that

they will be cared for; and that their memories will be cherished for the future. Please
consider our kupuna and their caregivers in our community of Hana. Consider the lack of
services we face everyday as an isolated and small community in the County of Maui.
Support us by not cutting our funding. Do not forget us or count us as not as important as the
rest of Maui. I ask for your continued support of Hale Hulu Mamo; Ohana Makamae; Hana
Youth Center; MEO; Hui Laulima 0 Hana; Hana Dialysis Home; Hana Cultural Center;
Hana Canoe Club; and Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike. Mahalo for all the work you do and have done.
On behalf of the people of Hana, we appreciate you! Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you very much. You know, we take our job very seriously; but this is the most entertaining
group of testifiers that we ever heard, so far, so I really appreciate that. Myrna Costello
followed by Marilyn Cisneros.
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MS. COSTELLO: Good evening, my name is Myrna Sumida Costello and I'm the President of the
Hana Lani Senior Citizens Club here in Hana, and these are the people I represent.
AUDIENCE: (NOTE• A group of senior citizens stood up.) . . . (applause) . . .
MS. COSTELLO: I am very honored to speak on behalf of our club here. We have about
55 members in our club and let me tell you about these people. Most of them were born in
Hana and they have this attitude that this is the price we pay for living in paradise; that we
cannot have everything because we're so isolated; but we have this "let's make it do", you
know. For instance, when the airline prices went up so high that it was no longer feasible to
fly, our people took to the road. When our budget did not allow us to do all of our shopping
in Hana, they took to the road. When we needed medical assistance that was not available
here, they took to the road. When we needed prescriptions and had to go to the other side,
we had to go to the road. The road was our lifeline, you know, to all the things that we need.
What happens when our kupuna get older and can no longer drive, MEO was there for us.
MEO took care of our needs. They became our lifeline. They gave us our independence for
a little bit longer; and that's why we're here tonight. It's to make sure that we are not just cut
with everybody else. We are a unique community because of our situation here and we want
to emphasize the fact that we really need the MEO. You know, just this last Friday, 38 of our
club members had a chance to go to Ulalena matinee. The first time they ever did a matinee.
Because we said we wanted it; we made it happen; and how did we get there—by MEO. I
mean without MEO, a lot of things are not available for us because we can't drive anymore.
I want to make sure I don't forget anything here. You know, it's very noble to talk about
servicing the kupuna. In Hana, I notice it's, we do it. We take action. We take care of our
kupuna. If you ever went to Hale Hulu Mamo on haircutting day, it's a blast! Everybody's
there getting their haircut. They wash our cars for us. You know, they are taking care of our
kupuna. It's really, really important. I haven't yet convinced-MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MS. COSTELLO: --Costco, Longs, or Safeway to open an outlet in Hana; but we're working on it.
We haven't found doctors, who will do house calls or to deliver our babies, but we're
working on it. I refuse to concentrate on the cuts. We want to focus on hanging on to the
services that we have that benefit our kupuna. I know everybody's tired but I want to leave
you with one word. In Japanese, there's a word called "gambate"! Gambate means do your
best; work hard; make it happen, at all cost. My father used to say that to us when we were
challenged. I ask you—gambate--crunch those numbers! Crunch those numbers the best you
can. Do a good job for us, so that we don't have to experience any cuts. Until then, leave us
with MEO. It's really, really important to us. And in closing, I want to ask you, is that one
dollar coming from MEO, or going to MEO? Do we know?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: The one dollar goes to the general fund (transportation fund) in the County
of Maui.
MS. COSTELLO: County of Maui. Okay. So it's not coming from, to be paid to MEO. Thank you
very, very much. Thank you for coming and thank you for . . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Myrna, thank you for testifying. I think there was during the
recess some people approached me about not being sure about that one dollar.
MS. COSTELLO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: That one dollar is being proposed by the Administration (by the
Mayor) not by MEO.
MS. COSTELLO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. Even though MEO would collect if that goes through,
it's the Mayor's Budget that is making the proposal.
MS. COSTELLO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. COSTELLO: In my opinion, I'd be willing to pay a dollar to get to the other side-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. COSTELLO: --because it's really important; and I'd be willing to pay a dollar to come back
home. . . . (chuckled) . . . I think that'll work. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, Myrna.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: (NOTE: Ms. Costello walked away from the microphone.) Excuse me!
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Myrna!
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Myrna, one more question. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair; and thank you, Myrna, for being a wonderful
president and a great representative of your group. It certainly has grown since I left MEO
five years ago. I see a lot more and I guess the president (the leader) is very important, so
thank you. You speak very well also.
MS. COSTELLO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: This dollar, there are many seniors who will be able to pay the dollar
because they happen to be a little better off; but there is still a huge concern for the older
seniors, you know, the real old seniors. Some who have no pension funds or who may have
pension funds. Last night, we heard from one of the HC&S retirees, who was pretty up in the
company, and his pension is $240 a month. You know, when I was at MEO, the pensioners
were making like $50 a month from the plantations because they retired under really austere
pension plans, not like, you know, retired state workers or whatever. These are really people
struggling. Some of them making social security minimum (SSI) which I think is a little
better than $300-some a month. And you know, if you're trying to live on that kind of
money, those dollars, here, there, and everywhere, are going to kill you because, you know,
we don't want them giving up food and medicine and things like that in order to have a ride
to go where we think they need to go. So, you know, I'm not ashamed to say, "I built that
thing!" I worked on it for 37 years and I built it because I thought it was important to take
care of people in need and it bothers me that, you know, with the stroke of a pen, we can take
away stuff that is so important to people. The other thing is I want you to be aware that there
is also a provision in there--you mentioned going to Ulalena--to do away with all excursions.
That means no more club excursions and those things are not good. I think we need to have a
discussion about it-MS. COSTELLO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --and everybody needs to be heard before the decision is made
because we have to understand what we're doing to people!
MS. COSTELLO: Yes.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause) . . .
MS. COSTELLO: Let us know what we can do and we will do it. As far as Hana is concerned, the
ride over is so important, I'm sure we're willing to pay the dollar; and if someone can't
afford it, we'll pay for them.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I know you guys. You guys going to have another fundraiser. But
you've done the most important thing you could do and that was to be here tonight because
we are the decision makers. Thank you very much.
MS. COSTELLO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Myrna!
CHAIR PONTANILLA: (NOTE: Ms. Costello walked away from the microphone again.) Myrna.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Myrna, excuse me.
MS. COSTELLO: You guys not pau yet? . . . (chuckled) . . .
AUDIENCE: . . . ('laughter,)...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: . . . (chuckled) . . . Since you represent such a large
contention of your people here, I want to—first of all—say that I really appreciate your
attitude because it begins with a positive attitude; and great things come from small
beginnings; and from Hana, can come a lot of really good—especially an example that will
help us throughout Maui County to understand what it takes to get things done. So like you
said—what your father said?
MS. COSTELLO: Gambate!
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Gambate—yeah! I think we can carry that
throughout the rest of our communities as we hear them and know that we can accomplish
these things against all odds; and just know that what Gladys Baisa said (Member Baisa).
This Council is the one to make the final decision, so you need to tell us what it is that you
want. Okay. So, mahalo.
MS. COSTELLO: Thank you.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
Helene Hall

March 25, 2010

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Marilyn Cisneros?
MS. CISNEROS: Aloha. I was just going to talk about MEO; but I felt satisfied after listening to
Mona and Gladys. I am just so satisfied! I want to let you know that I am from Keanae. I
am so happy being a resident of Keanae. My husband became disabled so he's no longer
allowed to drive; and knowing that you can count on the bus, that gave him a lot of hope that
it could take us down the hill and he can go to his appointments. I don't know about the
dollar, dollar, dollar, because it's a lot of stops. It's a lot of stops and it will be very hard. I
know it's not just for me but for the seniors and a lot of people. It's a big smile on the bus
when you're getting a ride down there, it will cut it in half, those dollar, dollar, dollar. I am
sure of that. And when I looked at my husband and what he's accomplished because of the
bus, I mean it gives us a lot of hope; so I am here to tell you one thing tonight, Council, I'm
here to say thank you. Thank you. I really appreciate it—that you have a bus that we could
afford to get to our appointments. We sure appreciate it. Thanks to MEO. Okay. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions? (NOTE: Ms. Cisneros walked away
from the microphone.) Excuse me. Can you come back to the mike and give us your name
and organization, if you represent any organization?
MS. CISNEROS: Marilyn Cisneros.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, please.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. We getting tired, can't even remem..., how many
stops? Okay. You said stops, you know, dollar, dollar, dollar. Okay. I understand that. If
your husband-MS. CISNEROS: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --goes to the other side for doctor and this and that, how many
stops would you count on an average trip out?
MS. CISNEROS: Five stops.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So five stops?
MS. CISNEROS: Five stops.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So five stops--he gets off the bus; does whatever; get back on?
MS. CISNEROS: To get back home, five stops.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So now, you're talking every trip--$5?
MS. CISNEROS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And how many times does he go over a month?
MS. CISNEROS: Oh! For . . . every Wednesday.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So . . .
MS. CISNEROS: Every Wednesday.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So four or five times a month-MS. CISNEROS: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --depending on the amount of Wednesdays in a month?
MS. CISNEROS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So you're talking $20-25 or something like that?
MS. CISNEROS: Yes, it is.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you very much.
MS. CISNEROS: And I have to say thanks to the drivers. They are always on time!
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause) . . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next testifier is Shannon Lind. Shannon Lind followed by
Timmy Satot.
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MS. LIND: Aloha, Council members. My name is Shannon Lind. I'm the Hana Senior Center
Assistant and I'm here to share the testimonies of our kupunas that utilizes the programs at
Hale Hulu Mamo.
I am a lifetime resident of Hana. I was born, raised, and worked here until retirement in
2007. My reason for writing you this letter is that I realize our County and State are facing
difficult economic times. However, I am asking for your continued support of the programs
at the Hana Senior Center. Many of our kupuna benefit from these programs. Without it,
some of them would not be able to get out and socialize and interact with others. Some may
not get a healthy meal and some may not even receive the personal care that they need. Like
other kupuna, I too have benefit from the programs at the Hana Senior Center. I humbly ask
that you consider the beneficiaries of these programs. Mahalo Nui Loa for all that you do
for the Hana Senior Center and I, again, ask for your continued support. This letter was
written from Aunty Kuuipo Kanakaole. She's a retired person that used to work at the
school.
And this is also another couple that utilizes the aqua-size programs for, that Hale Hulu Mamo
puts on. So it goes, My wife and I feel very fortunate to be able to avail ourselves of the
facilities and programs offered to the kupuna of Hana by Hale Hulu Mamo. On our many
visits there, I often see the same people. Some of whom I have known for thirty years; and
some of whom, I don't recog..., that don't recognize me now, who have made
Hale Hulu Mamo their second home. Some of them have no caregiver at home during the
day and, thus, have to rely on Hale Hulu Mamo to provide these services. I, myself have had
health problems over the past few years; and Hale Hulu Mamo has provided many objects
(such as, hospital beds, wheelchairs, etc.) to make my life easier Fortunately, I have a
caregiver at home--my wife for 64 years--who attends to my immediate needs, but who is
glad to know that Hale Hulu Mamo is always there to back her up. Hale Hulu Mamo has
also initiated an aqua-size program for seniors and has prevailed upon the hotel to furnish
one of its pools for that purpose. This has been another program they have offered, which we
have enjoyed over the years—almost ten years now. I think it would be a crushing loss to the
kupuna of Hana to not have these programs and facilities available to them. Sincerely, Ken
and Ruth Williams
I, myself, is also a caregiver for a kupuna that lives with us too as well and I'm, you know, I
MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MS. LIND: It comes to my knowledge that a lot of the nonprofit organizations is under the umbrella
of the County funding; and it's really important that, you know, we continue Ma Ka Hana Ka
Ike, Ohana Makamae, Hana Youth Center, especially the MEO for kupunas of Hana, and . . .
and also the Hana Arts program. So I stand here before you and thank you very much for
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coming out this evening and would really like to see the support that you folks offer to us
over and over, so thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
Timmy Satot followed by Chris Travis.
MR. SATOT: Hi, I'm Timmy Satot. I'm the Outreach Program Coordinator for Hale Hulu Mamo
and I will be spending my allotted time in reading three letters that were give to
Hale Hulu Mamo by some kupuna as well as their caregivers.
To the County Council: As a frequent user of the Hana Senior Center 's facilities and
services, it may be thought that my statement is just another self-serving appeal. I realize
that it would be inappropriate to request an exception for this center to the proposed cutback
in funding for all centers. However, I do believe that some consideration be given to this
center due to its relative isolation. We have no alternatives to these facilties and services. In
general, I would say that the idea of across-the-board cutbacks to the entire County Budget
should take into account the elements within that board. Are we the kind of society to
consider its seniors, whom it may be said have been and are the foundation of our society on
par with other elements within the County Budget. Respectfully, Jack Reinhardt
Aloha, Members of the Maui County Council. We are writing this letter of support for
Hale Hulu Mamo to thank you for funding them and to ask for your much-needed continued
support. My husband and I attend Hale Hulu Mamo on a weekly basis to get an hour and a
half lomi lomi treatment. I have diabetes, poor circulation, and heart problems,. and my
husband is a quadriplegic. Because of this service/program at Hale Hulu Mamo, we are
both able to live healthier, independent, fulfilling lives here in Hana. We would not be able to
travel to the other side for these services and cannot begin to tell you what a blessing
Hale Hulu Mamo and the services they provide for us kupuna are to us in Hana. I also go to
the aqua-size classes Hale Hulu Mamo offers because my legs feel better Mahalo for all you
do in helping the people of Hana, especially us kupuna. We beg you to continue supporting
Hale Hulu Mamo, MEO, and Hui Laulima 0 Hana (Hana Dialysis Home). The services that
these agencies provide are vital to our community and my husband and I. Mahalo, Gladys
and Stephen Sinenci
Aloha, I wanted to express some concerns about proposed funding reduction pertaining to
Hale Hulu Mamo. I am a single man serving as primary caregiver for my elderly mother. As
I am completely on my own, I frequently rely on the good services provided by
Hale Hulu Mamo and the very caring staff who work there. They help me immensely in
making sure that my mother 's quality of life remains as positive as possible during her senior
years. From social opportunities to weekly health services they make available, my mother
and I certainly appreciate all that Hale Hulu Mamo has offered us. I especially appreciate
that my mother, through Hale Hulu Mamo, has been able to continue to interact with her
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contemporaries with her regular visits to their senior center, not to mention the health
benefits she receives that are so vital in maintaining her wellbeing. We respectfully ask that
the committee consider retaining full-funding for this very valuable organization. Mahalo
Nui, Duke Walls, Hana, Maui
And then I, too, would like to lend my voice to their letters because-MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MR. SATOT: --not only being an employee of Hale Hulu Mamo, but I primarily came here to Hana
to be a family caregiver for my grandmother and she too has benefited from the services that
Hale Hulu Mamo gives as well as the MEO Transportation services. If it wasn't for these
services, she would not be able to remain here in Hana as long as she has. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
very much. Thank you. Chris Travis followed by Esse Sinenci.
MS. TRAVIS: Mahalo for coming to Hana, Council members. I wanted first to say that Myrna's
mother is here. At 95-years-old, she is our oldest Member in the Hana Lani Club.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause)...
MS. TRAVIS: One of the things that I noticed on this with us is cutting out the senior senior fair.
That's where we make our money once a year, for all that we spend during the year to go on
excursions and for our lunches and stuff. Last year, we made the most money we ever
did--over $2,000. We sell plants. We sell fruit. We sell poi from Keanae. Everybody gets
into it. Everybody brings something and we all have a good time selling and spending the
day out there. I have a letter here from one of our members--Chris. She couldn't be here
tonight so she asked me to read it, and it goes.
The MEO Bus Transportation and other services are very important to the senior citizens,
especially in Hana and other remote areas. We depend especially on the transportation
services, especially for our medical and daily necessities. Most of those who use the bus
cannot drive, have no car, or have family members that must work and cannot take us to the
other side. Unfortunately, as we age, it seems like we need more medical attention and more
medication. We also need more food items, which is unavailable in Hana. So please, for the
health (both physical and mental) for us it is important that you support us and keep us
going. Thank you so much for helping us in the past.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. TRAVIS: That's it.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Thank you very
much; and by the way, my ti leaf that I bought from you folks are still growing. Esse?
MS. SINENCI: Aloha kakou, Chair Pontanilla and others. I am Esse Sinenci. I'm here to speak as
a Board member and patron of the Hana Cultural Center, as well as user of other services by
the nonprofit organizations. The cultural center's concept has existed for more than 40 years
and the museum, itself, more than 25 years. We are very proud to serve the residents and the
visitors island-wide as well as international visitors. This year, we are promoting the Hana
Highway as the "Millennium Legacy Trail for Hawaii". I'm so glad that Myrna talked about
taking it to the road because we had chosen this theme for our Ho'olaulea in August. We are
also now thanking the County of Maui for having helped us with this program ten years ago.
We always need the support from you as well as the community members to join membership
in our center and museum because . . . so we can continue to tell the story of Hana, its
heritage, its history, and its people, even amidst financial distress. Thank you, again, our East
Maui Council members, for hearing the voices of this intergenerational group; namely, the
cultural center; the senior center; the youth center; the kupuna; Hana Arts; Ohana Makamae;
Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike. We are really, truly a can-do community. I would also like to read a
testimony by friends of Hana, also users of our community resources.
This is what David and Diane Buck write. Before you remove Maui County Budget items for
Hana nonprofits, please consider three facts. 1. Hana Public Library is a critical library I
the system because it serves both the school and the community. Currently, Hana Public
Library has one furlough day each week, which means low-income folks cannot access
information on computers for applying for employment. Unemployment in Hana is higher
than other areas because of its rural and isolated position on Maui. Hana cannot live with
less staff and cuts to its library. 2. Hana Senior Center (Hale Hulu Mamo) is essential to a
large group of senior citizens in this community. Besides working tirelessly to serve the
elderly with wellness programs and health assistance, Hale Hulu Mamo communicates vital
information to its seniors and to the community . . .(end of tape, start 3B at 8:40 p. m.). . .
Thanks to a hardworking staff at Hale Hulu Mamo, they can deliver and they partner with
other nonprofits in the community to deliver a myriad of opportunities for the people.
Without these services, Hana will be in danger of losing its vibrant senior center. Hana must
continue to have a strong Hale Hulu Mamo. 3. Hana Arts reaches school children on
furlough Fridays; presents high-school theater events; offers young adult to seniors fine arts
programming; schedules wellness activities; and brings professional musicians to Hana.
This nonprofit reaches a wide and diverse range of people in the community. Hana Arts
creates with a very small budget. Hana Arts also gives people opportunities to use their
imagination and grow.
MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
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MS. SINENCI: Oh! One more thing! Really, truly! This is what Diane and David Buck continued
to write. We are homeowners in Hana. Nonetheless, we are willing to share your pain by
endorsing Mayor Tavares's plan for real property tax increases rather than nonprofit cuts.
Nonprofit organizations are the lifeline of Hana. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Esse? Seeing none, thank you,
again. Oh! Member Baisa? (NOTE: Ms. Sinenci walked away from the microphone.) Esse!
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Excuse me, Esse! Esse, thank you for your testimony. It was very
well done; but I just wanted to ask you a question. In the last statement you made about
endorsing Mayor Tavares's real property tax but don't cut the nonprofits. In the Budget that
you have before you, the Mayor has already proposed real property tax increases and she is
still cutting the nonprofits. So it's not a question of if we raise the real property taxes the
way she's suggesting, we can save those cuts that are proposed. They are in this package.
She's raised the taxes but she's still proposing cuts; so we're going to have to take a real good
look at it and see what we can come up with to try to come up with our own solution to the
problem. So I hope everybody understands that what you're looking at is Mayor Tavares's
proposal, but the Council will have the final say; and we have to complete this work by
when, Budget Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: May, I think second and final is May 27 th , I think.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, by the end of May. Otherwise, the Mayor's Budget will
become law. We want to change it so that we can fix whatever we can, before that happens,
so that is what we are trying to do, with your help. Thank you.
MS. SINENCI: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Joanne Medeiros-Young followed by Patricia Malaiakini.
MS. MEDEIROS-YOUNG: Aloha, Members of the Maui County Council. (NOTE: She adjusts the
microphone stand.) Okay. Aloha, Members of the Maui County Council. I'm here—my
name is Joanne Medeiros-Young and I am reading a testimony from Patricia Eason.
I regret that I am not able to address you personally, but I do want to express my sincere
mahalo for the wonderful programs offered to the residents of Hana. These programs are
made available and possible because of your financial assistance. I want to note, in
particular: 1. Hale Hulu Mamo, 2. Hana Youth Center, 3. Ohana Makamae, and 4. MEO.
I have personally witnessed the positive influence these organizations have had on the
members of our community.
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Hale Hulu Mamo is a program for the kupuna of Hana. It fulfills an area of need for the
elders and their families. The loving and caring environment offers the seniors projects in
arts and crafts, music appreciation, and special social activities. The staff is mindful and
careful to ensure that their clients eat healthy lunches and snacks. They schedule
appointments for massage, haircuts, manicures, pedicures, and exercise programs for the
kupuna. The kupunas' health and wellbeing is priority one at Hale Hulu Mamo. It is the
only available day care for our elders and, therefore, it is imperative that this program is
funded annually.
Hana Youth Center offers various opportunities for the young people of our community,
between the ages of 8 and 18, with programs which inspire and promote positive attitudes
and a willingness to learn. Most recently, the participants have been working on a digital
media project involving our kupunas. Their interviews will be presented in a film for our
community in May. Cultural programs are also vital at Hana Youth Center The youngsters
did the digital mapping of Hana Bay and will soon embark on the digital mapping of the
Japanese cemetery. This center is a place for young people to gather and socialize in a safe
environment. The staff members of the Hana Youth are young, energetic, and good role
models. This program is very important for the young people of Hana.
Ohana Makamae also benefits from your financial assistance. Their services include
substance abuse prevention, group or individual counseling, educational classes with
emphasis on the Hawaiian culture-MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MS. MEDEIROS-YOUNG: --as well as instruction in anger management and healthy living.
The Maui Economic Opportunity is another organization which our community depends on.
Bus transportation is available to the kupunas for pick-up and drop-off at the
Hale Hulu Mamo and weekly trips to Wailuku for doctors ' appointments and shopping.
I humbly ask that you consider annually funding the above-mentioned programs, especially
since they are the only such organizations here in Hana. I am truly grateful to you for what
you have done, what you do for us and say "Mahalo Nui Loa" to each and every Council
member Sincerely, Patricia Eason
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
MS. MEDEIROS-YOUNG: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Patricia Malaiakini? Rick Rutiz? Rick Rutiz?
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MR. RUTIZ: Aloha and thank you very much for coming out tonight. I'd like to give you the big

list like everyone else. I'm really excited about how we support each other and work with
each other out here. Ohana Makamae, Hale Hulu Mamo, Hana Arts, Hana Cultural Center,
the canoe club, MEO, dialysis, the Film Festival, MEO—I said that already twice--okay,
youth center, skate park, Public Health Nursing. All of these—let's put it this way. I deal
with kids a lot and there aren't any kids sitting around at the bay, lighting up with a six-pack
of underage beer because they're at the youth center. They're with Uncle Keoki. They're
with . . . they're building things. They may be at the potential skate park that will be there.
They're playing baseball. They're doing all these things. They're not down in the bay
getting high and that's really. When I go to the other side, that's not what I see. So thank
you so much for supporting all of these organizations here in Hana. I think there's one I
forgot. Oh, yeah, Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike. Over at Ma Ka Hana, where—just as far as new
things besides the building—we're working with Kamaui Aiona over at Kahanu Gardens and
we're breaking ground on a large new community garden, which will be open to the whole
community. It's being leveraged by the kids--they're the ones who are starting it—along
with the staff at Kahanu Gardens. This will be, not a type of a farm where, here you get
10-square-feet and plant something. We have tractors. We have backhoes. We have
bulldozers. We'll be making compost. We'll have livestock. We'll have chickens. We'll be
growing in large quantities to feed the community and it will be disbursed in—it's called
Mahele Farms. So it will be disbursed per input into the farm and, hopefully, a lot of food
will be grown down there. Otherwise, you talked about leverage funding, thank you so much
for the funding that you give us and just to let you know that for every dollar you're giving
us, we're raising ten more. So you're not carrying us completely, and we do very much
appreciate everything you're giving us. So thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
Guy Lay followed by Hilary Harts.
MR. LAY: Aloha, Council members. Thank you for coming out this evening. We really appreciate
you being here. I know it's a long trip and you probably have a long trip going home. I'm
representing the Dialysis Home. I'm a Board member with Lehua. We started this about
four years ago. I'm also a Chairperson for the HCA and I'm also a Board member with the
Hui No Ke Ola Pono. I was reluctant to get into these roles but after seeing all the things that
we need in farmer, I just couldn't be a farmer anymore. I had to step forward and see what I
could do. I also acknowledge all the other nonprofits for what they've been doing here. It's
really monumental when you look at what they, they keep going. We appreciate all of the
things that you give and we look forward to your help in the future. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
Hilary Harts?
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MS. HARTS: Good evening and thank you so much for being here. It's getting late so I just want to
thank you for all that you've done for our nonprofits and good luck! . . . (chuckled) . . .
You've got a huge challenge ahead of you. A couple that I just want to quickly go into that I
think have not had given is the skate park or the Pa'ani Mai. I know that I won't need to go
into it but just a reminder for that for the kids for the youth for the youth center for all that
Rick does in helping and keeping the youth active and doing such positive things. I also
want to put a word forward for the Art Barn. There's many in the middle zone. There's the
youth and there's the seniors; but the Art Barn also helps so many people. I find myself
going there in terms of activities and many new things are coming forth, so I want to put a
plug for that. There's also, I'm on the Mu'olea or Na Mamo 0 Mu'olea and the coastal zone
management that hasn't been mentioned at all tonight; and that is just, I'm a volunteer
through NOAA and look after the monk seals when they come in this area. We just had a
whale come through. Unfortunately, it didn't make it; but in terms of the coastal
management, that needs to be looked after. This is a very vital area for tourism for people
who live here and now the monk seals that are coming and making their homes here also. So
thank you; bless you; and safe travel home.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you for your testimony. On the skate park, we are
working on that. I'm working with some agencies and as a community, we have to be very
grateful to Hana Ranch who's donating land to expand the park and also for the senior
housing, which I'm also working on with the Hana Ranch-MS. HARTS: Great.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --and some other agencies. So those projects are moving but
it'll move slow mainly because of funding; but a lot of other things are involved in doing
things like that.
MS. HARTS: Excellent.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So the skate park has become a priority because that's been
asked for for a long time in Hana.
MS. HARTS: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo.
MS. HARTS: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
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MS. HARTS: Good night.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Andrew Rayner followed by Bob Getzen.
MR. RAYNER: Andrew Rayer, in the two years of living in Hana that we've had so far, I have
learned enormous respect for the organizations which support life in Hana. Let me add my
voice specifically to the pleas to maintain your funding for Ohana Makamae. I particularly
want to speak on behalf of two organizations which have a little less support tonight.
First, the canoe club. This is very important to the children here. You all know that the
canoe above all embodies the mind of pacific peoples. We've been lucky enough to visit, I
think, something upwards of 200 pacific islands; and everywhere, the canoe is vitally
important. I think it's part of the heritage which should not be lost and your support for the
canoe club is core funding. The club, like a lot of these organizations here, depends on the
dedicated work of lots and lots of volunteers; but that core funding is desperately important.
It may not be possible in this case to match it particularly well but please don't let that
discourage the funding for the canoe club.
Secondly, Hana Arts. I don't think she's been able to make it tonight; but we have a tireless
and dedicated Director of Hana Arts here, which I'm sure you know well—Joanne Fanning.
I think she's a little discouraged because it's very, very hard to raise outside funding for arts
matters nowadays. That's not just in Hana. I actually believe that's everywhere. There are
dedicated funds for all sorts of activities but the arts tend to be low on the list. It's a hard
year for everything. Austerity is very great; but could you see your way, perhaps, to
increasing slightly that Hana Arts gets? It's very small.
I know it's outside your particular field, but could you also have a word with whoever
controls the cash flow. I understand that the money is very, very slow to come through and
that is awfully painful to an organization that depends on it. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you. Bob Getzen followed by Robin Rayner.
MR. GETZEN: Aloha, County Council members. Thank you for coming out tonight and thank you
for your past support and your continued support for Hana, all the nonprofits. I'm speaking
tonight. I've been asked to read a short note from George Keaumoku. The Maui Fest Hawaii
for Hana, Maui, Molokai and Lanai serves the entire island. For you that aren't familiar with
this festival, it provides free music and free films. The films are pacific films usually relating
to culture of the pacific. These services are provided free at the same time each community's
nonprofit are able to use this as a fundraiser. They sell products and sell food and things like
this. At the same time, these film festivals and music festivals are filmed and they're shown
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for many years internationally around the world on tv stations, so they promote Maui. So
besides whatever immediate impact we're getting, we're getting funding that goes off into
the future that benefits the entire island of Maui as these films also will demonstrate what
goes on in the community, activities for tourists and locals.
George Keaumoku has performed at all of these festivals and his message to you is: To all
the County Council members, please support Maui Fest Hawaii for Hana, Maui, Molokai,
and Lanai, as I have participated in Maui Fest and all Maui nui tri-isles; and they are a
blessing to our community in these trying times. Please support Maui Fest in any way
possible. Feel free to call or email George if you have questions. George's email address is
George@Keaumoku.com and his phone number is 280-9948.
Thank you for your support. I'd also urge you to support all the organizations in Hana,
particularly Hawaiian Canoe Club and the Hana Arts, which I'm very active in. Thank you
very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
Robin Rayner followed by Barry Chang.
MS. RAYNER: Thank you all for coming out to Hana this evening. We really appreciate your
efforts and your, everything you do for us here in Hana. As you all know, we're a fairly
remote place and we depend so much on the County for the funds in the things we are able to
do here; but this is a County, a town that really works together. We're like a small island and
we depend on each other, and I think you've seen that this evening with the way our various
nonprofits work together. I think the money that you bring to Hana gets multiplied hugely by
the efforts of the community members here and the volunteers and the people dedicated to
this wonderful community that we live in. Two organizations that I just want to mention
briefly.
Ohana Makamae, which I sit on the board for and is just . . . so dedicated to the community
of Hana and our families and really on the frontline with a lot of the problems and crisis that
family members face in this community and the ability to deal with some of those problems
here at home and not have to travel to the other side in order to get help is so important to our
community.
The other thing that I'm particularly dedicated to is the Hana Arts and the arts program here.
I participate a lot in their adult activities, you know, from yoga to drawing classes to exercise
classes but I've also taught the kids in the school on our Friday, our Friday classes. As my
husband mentioned, the arts are taking a terrific hit with this economic downturn. They are
just seen as something that's not that important and I feel very differently about that because
for the children, the educational system today is very much focused on the math and the
science and I'm very interested in learning in creativity. In order to, for children to really be
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able to be creative, they need to develop both a left and right brain, the left and right sides of
their brain. Our school curriculum today focuses very much on left-brain learning and very
little on right-brain learning; and in order to be a balanced person, and in order to be creative
in anything that you do--whether it's science or whatever it is--you need to be able to develop
that right-hand side of your brain and use that. When I've talked to children, if I use
left-brain techniques, they can get it. If I use right-brain techniques, they don't get it.
They're not being taught that and that's something that Hana Arts is very dedicated to doing
and to teaching, to developing that side of a child's brain and that ability to be creative. It's
something that, they fill a terrific gap that's missing in the educational process today. So I
hope you will continue to support Ohana Makamae, Hana Arts, and our community; and
thank you very much for coming here tonight.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you,
again.
MS. RAYNER: Thanks a lot.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Barry Chang followed by Bob March.
MR. CHANG: Aloha, Council members. Thank you for coming. I come as a Member of Hana
Canoe Club and want to express our gratitude for all our past; and hopefully, future help with
our nonprofits. Also, what I wanted to say is that our kupuna deserve everything that you can
give 'em because Hawaii and Maui is because of our kupuna. Also for our youth, because
they are the ones that's going to be the future. Thank you. And hopefully, we can get
support for the whole island because as you know Hana is small in population but big in
destination. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
Bob March followed by Daisy Lind.
MR. MARCH: Aloha. Thank you for coming tonight. I don't know if you're spending the night. If
not, it's going to be a long drive. Don't forget, there's only 17 streetlights from Hana to Paia.
Be careful. My name is Bob March and I'm the Vice-President of the Hana Canoe Club. I'd
like to thank you very much for your past support and grants and also our current use of
grants. We know that that type of money is going to become even more competitive and hard
to get and we want you to know that we are going to continue to be active in the effort to
continue to receive service from you. We've heard a lot of testimonies tonight about MEO
and I'm also going to lend my two-cents to it; but unlike all of the rest of the testimony that
you've heard about MEO, I'm going to give you a reason to urge you to continue the service
because of the requirement of our junior paddlers. As you know, Hana is considered to be on
the other side of the island. We are away from all the activities. In our canoe regattas, Hana
Canoe Club is the one club on the island that is required to travel seven times to the other
-48-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
Helene Hall

March 25, 2010

side of the island for competition. MEO provides transportation for our junior paddlers. It is
of the utmost importance. Since last year, we saw a 29-percent increase in our junior
paddlers. Our season is getting ready to start again and we hope that that increase also
continues. But to have paddlers have to leave at five o'clock in the morning to be down to
Kahului at seven, you can imagine what time they have to get up to be over in Lahaina and
Kihei. MEO is essential! It's been said once before tonight and I will repeat it again. The
MEO is a lifeline to Hana. It's a lifeline to Hana. So we, once again, thank you for your
support. We want to let everybody know that the Hana Regatta--which is an unofficial
competition but is respected by everybody on the island--will once again take place on
May 15 th and 16 th . I personally invite each and every one of you to come out and enjoy the
day with us. If we have an empty seat, we'd love to have you experience that five miles of
sometimes calm water around Alau Island and back to the bay. It will give you a new
appreciation of what everybody in Hana loves to do and loves to see. So thank you again for
your appreciation and also your support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you,
again. Daisy Lind followed by Ward Mardfin.
MS. LIND: Aloha pumehana, Councilmen, and to the kupuna and ohana of Hana.
AUDIENCE: Aloha.
MS. LIND: I'm here tonight to support, you know. You heard everything. Everybody said all the
good things but I have to put my two-cents in because I travel with that. I scared myself
when I talk like that. . . . (chuckled) . . . Oh, okay. Okay. We travel over to Wailuku on that
bus (on the MEO Bus) and of course, we had to make appointment; but first, I would like to
thank all of you for the help you folks have given us; for all that time you've been here
traveling back and forth. I really appreciate all the things you guys have done for us, and we
know you guys working hard. As far as I'm concerned, we don't want anything to happen
with that MEO Bus. We want that support from you. We still need that because, of course,
tonight, I heard that dollar here and dollar there. Before you know it, that's plenty dollars we
going have to spend. . . . (chuckled) . . . So as much as possible try cut it down or take it
away, but just give us what we need. And I'm also supporting Hale Hulu Mamo. That's
where we all spend our time, especially when—I use Hale Hulu Mamo a lot. When I get
lonely, I get up there and try get in Shannon and Sheila's way. . . . (chuckled) . . . You know,
they only need to tell me "Aunty, go home". I look at them, that's it. I'm just going to be
good to them, so I support them. They work real hard for what they're doing at
Hale Hulu Mamo. I also ask you guys to support them too. I'm asking for all the support
that we need in Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike. We have to support them. Thank you, Rick. He built
me a house, a 12-by-12 room, and that's what I'm in today. I stay with my grandson, but I
have my own room. When he make me mad, I go in my room and stay; so you see, that's the
catch to it, you know, you get your room, you take that room when they give it to you. And
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also the youth center, you know, we have all our children go up there. We use it a lot too.
You know, Keoki works hard with all these kids; and Ohana Makamae, I'm on the board; but
like I said, everybody said all the good things. I just coming to kind of close up little bit, you
know; you know what I'm talking about. Gladys, get up! . . . (laughter) . .
AUDIENCE: . . . (laughter) . . .

MS. LIND: Poor, Gladys, had to come all the way, that ride. I feel sorry.
MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MS. LIND: But I appreciate you folks being over here tonight, and thank you very much. You
know, on that MEO Bus, we have three terrific drivers and that is—Johnny, Aloha, and
Karen.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause) . . .
MS. LIND: I just wanted them to be recognized by you guys. We love them all.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. LIND: We love you guys.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. LIND: Good night.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none. Ward Mardfin
followed by Meredith Einaudi.
MR. MARDFIN: Aloha. Welcome to Hana. I hope you had a nice drive over. I'm here to, with
a--like everybody else--with a variety of hats. My main one is that I'm the Treasurer for the
Hana Cultural Center, and I urge you to keep supporting the Hana Cultural Center. We
preserve and disseminate the culture and history of this . . . of East Maui. All the other
organizations, we all work together. We do lots of things together. The Hana Youth Center,
Hana Arts, which is also referred to as the Art Barn--in case you heard it, it's one in the same
thing--Ohana Makamae, Hale Hulu Mamo, they . . . we really work together on this. Five of
us got together recently and are working with Hotel Hana Maui in a recycling program. They
put their plastic, aluminum, and glass bottles together and we nonprofits each take a turn at
taking it over to the other side or putting it at Hasegawa's to recycle it. This reduces the
demand on the dumpsite (landfill) and provides a little income for us so we're doing things,
and that's a good thing for the community. . . . (end of tape, start 4A at 9:15 p.m.). . . MEO
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Transportation is really an important thing, but everybody's been pleading for it and what it
does for us. I want to suggest that it's a good thing for people on the other side. We're using
less gasoline; and if we have one van taking six or seven people over than if there are seven
individual cars, that is lightening traffic on the roads. That's lightening traffic in Kahului and
Wailuku. The idea of a dollar per stop is kind of the wrong way to go about it. You want
people to make multiple stops. You want them to, if they go over to do four, five, or six
things at the same time, so they make fewer trips in general. So there's benefits to this for
people on the other side in helping to fund this. If you needed to do some sort of means
testing of this so poorer people don't pay anything and wealthier people can pay some, I
don't have a personal problem with that. I think that's an interesting idea.
The last thing I really want to—and I left off Hale Pomaikai. My closest friend in Hana is
being serviced there and I think it's crucial that that be kept up. The Hana Canoe Club does
great things; keeps the kids in good shape; and it's, everything is really working well on that.
As I say, we all work together. But I would like to say—and I'd like to refer to the CIP
Budget. We've all been talking about the grants and I hope you will at least maintain and
hopefully increase the amount of grants; but your CIP package for Hana looks--many things
are very important—Pa' ani Mai Park; replacement of the bridges on the County roads is really
crucial for health and safety. The road you came in on wasn't completed until 1926. Before
that, there were steamers and canoes.
MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MR. MARDFIN: The roads are important. If I may, let me say one last thing--it's "how we can help
you". And now, I really have to direct this to the audience. We are in the process of a
census. It takes place every ten years. It is crucial, crucial that every person in this room go
to all your family, all your friends, and make sure every census sheet is turned in fully. We
need to know the ages of all the people in Hana so that we can plan for schools and plan for
senior programs. It's important that every Hawaiian be counted as well as the other groups.
Make sure that you fill out the question on ethnicity. Not only will it be good for us and help
for planning of things in Hana, but it's good for the County because the more people that are
counted, the more Federal funds will flow into the County. This is something we can do.
MR. JENSEN: Four minutes.
MR. MARDFIN: We need to do this to get, to help the County so we can help ourselves. Thank you
very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
Meredith?

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
Helene Hall

March 25, 2010

MS. EINAUDI: Good evening. My name is Meredith Einaudi. I've lived here in Hana for about
six years and I want to speak on behalf of three organizations I've been involved with.
First, I'm on the Board of Directors of Ohana Makamae, who serves our families in a variety
of ways, including the mothers of our young children; our substance abuse counseling and
prevention programs in the schools; and many other programs we have blueprints for.
I'd also like to speak on behalf of Hale Hulu Mamo, which made a huge difference in my life
when I moved here six years ago, in helping me make new friends and for whom I taught
water exercise for several years.
Lastly, I'd like to speak on behalf of Hana Arts for which I'm currently a teacher of exercises
several days a week. This is an organization that really, I think, meets the needs of a huge
number of people across all ages in this community. And again, the arts seem to be so greatly
underfunded because people feel it's, there's sort of a, sort of a, as a fringe benefit. But I
want to say to you—as someone who has a Masters Degree in dance—I think the arts are a
critical way for young people, who perhaps are not academically oriented, to develop a sense
of pride in themselves; and that's the kind of pride and self-respect that can keep people from
being tempted by things like substance abuse. So I think the arts are a really an important
part of self-respect and I think the arts also help kids to think creatively. When you learn
math, there's one right and one wrong answer. In the arts, we respect alternate solutions to
the same thing. When you paint a painting or you choreograph a dance, you respect alternate
solutions and you learn to look at how you can deal with a problem--visually or tactilely in
different ways--and you learn to respect that. And I think that translates to teaching creative
thinking—alternate ways of seeing solutions to the same problem--so I would strongly urge
you to keep the funding going for the Hana Arts. I think it has a huge impact in this
community, which--as someone pointed out earlier--is a little like an island; and we need this
help because we are relatively isolated.
Also, I would say that what's wonderful about agencies in this village is that people pitch in
and teach for free when they can. So that you know, we're taking whatever funding you give
us and we're multiplying it many times by those of us who teach without salaries and
fundraising that we can do over and above what you're able to give us. Thank you very
much.
. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY...

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you,
again. Members, Meredith was the last person to sign up for public testimony. Is there
anyone out there that wants to provide public testimony? Seeing none coming up, I just want
to say thank you, Hana community, for coming out and providing us with your concerns and
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issues regarding the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget as proposed by Mayor Tavares. We will be
continuing on, meeting with various communities on Maui. We're going to go to Molokai.
We're going to go to Lanai because we need all of your input prior to formulating the
Council's Budget that we need to complete by the end of April and approve by the end of
May, so we have a lot of work ahead of us. There's only a limited amount of monies, so it's
going to be tough for nine Members to create a Budget that we can live with.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused: JAJ & WKN)
ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: So again, thank you very much for being here tonight. The meeting of the
Budget and Finance Committee in Hana is now adjourned. . . . (gavel) . . .
ADJOURN: 9:24 p.m.

APPROVED BY:

JOSEPH PONTANILLA, Chair
Budget and Finance Committee
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